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DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
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December 28, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of
$273,900 to supplement the Agency's Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective January
12, 2022, through December 31, 2022, upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. 100%
Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2022

02-52-52-520010-18870000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $273,900.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant
guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization
Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients
eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

NH Energy is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance
Program (WAP). The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of
energy costs in low-income households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with
children, and households with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP
work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract
will allow the Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of
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homes receiving heating system improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year
which begins on January 1, 2022. NH Energy estimates that approximately thirty-seven (37)
additional homes will be assisted in the CAA's service area as a result of the supplemental funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Respectfully submitted,

/ Jared Chicoine

/ Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Energy
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its a ttachmentsshaUbecomepublic upon submission to Governor and
Executive CouncD for approval Any information that is private, confidential or proprietaiy must
be clearly identified to theagency and agreed to in writing prior to signing Ihcconlracl.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshircand the Contractorhereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Energy

1.2 StateAgency Address
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10

Concord,NH 03301

1.3 ContractorName

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)752-7001

1.6 Account Number

02-52-52-520010-18870000-

074-500587 52BWP22

1.7 Completion Date
DcccmbcrSl, 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$273,900.00

1.9 ContractingOfficer for State Agency
Kiric Stone, Weatherization Program Manager

1.10 StateAgency Telephone Number
(603)271-3670

1.11 ContractorSignature |V

Dale:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jeanne Robfllard, Chief Executive Officer

1.13 StateAgency Signature

Dale:

1.14 NameandTitle of StateAgency Signatory
Jared Chicoine,'Commissioncr

New Hamp.shire Department of Energy

\Js Approve i by the N.H. DepartmeniofAdministration,Division ofPersonncl fif applicable)

By; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

1.17. Approvalby the Govcmorand Executive Council C^fapplicable)

G&C Hem number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contraclor")to perfonn, and the Ccntractorshall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and.more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference C'Scrviccs").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and a llobliga tions of the pa nies hereunder, sha II
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement

shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Stole Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, a nd in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriatbn of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminaics or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State sha 11 not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event fundsin that Accountarereduced orunavailablc.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, a ndtemis of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractorother than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
throu^i RSA 80:7-c oranyotherprovision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement ,to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the tola 1 of a U payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in blockl.S,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rij^ls and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies ofthe United Stales, the Contractor
shall comply with all fedcralexecutiveorders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor sha 11 also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 E)uring the term oftbis Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
becauscofracc,color, religion, creed, age,sex, handicap,sexual
orientation,ornationalorigin andwill lakeaffirmativeactionto
prevent such discrimination.
6,3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of asccrtainingcompliaocc with all rules, regubtions
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall a tits own expense provide a 11 personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Coniraclorwarrantsthat
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of sb( (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor sha II not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or officbl, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of thus Agreement. This
provision shallsurvivc tctminationofthLs Agreement.
7.3 The ContraclingOfficcr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shaD be the Stale's representative. Intheevcntofany
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
ContractingOfficcr's decision shaUbe final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/RENtEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Coniraciorsha 11 constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perfom the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit anyreportrequired hereunder,and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any olhercovenant, term orcondition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or a 11, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractoro written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser speciftcaiionoftimc, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contra ctornoticeof temiination;

8.2.2 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending aU payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of siich notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall nevcrbe paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractora vwitten notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obli^tions the State may
owe to the Contractorany damages the State suffers by reason of
anyEveniofDefault; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at lawor in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rî its with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to cnforceany Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon a ny further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15)daysafterthcdatc
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Temiination Report shall
be idcnticQ I to those of any Fina 1 Report described in the attached
EXHIBITS. Inaddition.attheStatc'sdiscretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 daysof noticeof early termination,develop and
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submit-to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shaU mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or a cquircd or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, bulnot limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae,surveys,maps,charts,soundrccordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,graphic
represcntations,computerprograms, computcrprintouts, notes,
letters, memoranda.papcrs, and documents,all whether
finished or unfinLshed.

10.2 All data andany property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand orupon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data, shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter91-A or otherexisting law. Disclosure ofdata requires
prior written approvalofthc State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in ail respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractornor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive anybcncfits,woikcn>' compensation or
other emoluments provided by thcStatcto its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/S UBCONT RACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Stale. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Changc of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together wth its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall notbe'bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontractor an assignment agreement to which h is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,

the Contractor shaU indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and aU claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, orolhcrclaims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
maybe claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontructors, including but not limited to (he
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractorarising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstandingthe foregoing,nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a wa iverof the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. TTiis covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in' force, and shaU require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial genera) liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not

less than $ 1,000,000 per occuircncc and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the ttdiole replacement value of the property.
14.2 Thepolicics described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy formsandendorscmentsapprovedforusc in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the StatcofNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the ContractingOfficer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
forall renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals Ihereofsha 11 be attached and are incorporated hcrchby
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and wanantsthat the Con tractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chaptcr281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 28J-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure andmaintah,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursua nt to this
Agreement. The Contractorshall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her succcsjvor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapta
281-A and any applicable rcncwalfs) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers*
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshke
Woikers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a parly hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybeamendcd,waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
patties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the StatcofNew Hampshire unless no such approval is required
undcrthecircumstanccspursuantto State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the

laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to thcbcncfitofthe parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of constniction shall be applied against or in favorof any party.
Any actions arisu]g out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive Jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confiicl

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified In EXHIBIT
A) and/orattachmentsand amendment thereof, the terms of the

P-37 (asmodified in EXHIBITA) shallcontrol.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to conferany such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in noway be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
intciprctation, construction or mcaningof the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT Aare incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. Intheeventanyoftheprovisionsofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which maybe
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and

understanding between the parties, and supersedes aU prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200, as amended, (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002 (Weatherization Assist^ce
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) Stale Plan, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P&PM), and N HWAP Field "Guide are all considered part of this
contract by inclusion and shall be legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy) reserves the right to use any legal remedy
at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension
of agency personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors
from present or future contracts, and such other legal remedies as detennined to be appropriate by the
New Hampshire Department of Justice in the entbrcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the
Weatherization Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The
Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least
every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs along with a response
regarding the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters
written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to the NH Energy within
one month of the time ofreceiptby the Contractor acconpanicd by an action, if applicable, for each
finding or questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

"9.3 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by the New Hanpshirc
Department of Energy to the Contractor shall allow the New Hampshire Department of Energy, the
US Department of Energy, Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Subgrantcc or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, cxccipts, and transcriptions."

4. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principals.

5. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the NH Energy and the
Contractor for 3 (three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for
awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or
annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.333-Retention Requirements for Records.

6. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within forty-five (45) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

Exhibit A
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7. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties
that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional federal funds
under any other law of the United States, except if authorized under that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the
Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobaeco
Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance."

I

"27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act
(18 use 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that each contractor, subcontrxt or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any
means, any person en[q)loyed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the New Hampshire Dqjartment of Energy

"28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards with special emphasis on financial
procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards.)"

Exhibit A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. hereinafter "the Contractor," agrees to utilize the Building
Weatherization Program (BWP) funds, which are the subject of this contract and which have their ori^
in the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), to provide eligible clients with
weatherization services, including heating system repair and replacement services, which meet the
requirements and standards for LIHEAP weatherization work as modified and approved in the FY22
New Hampshire LIHEAP State Plan. In addition, all work completed using BWP funds will be in
aecordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forth in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and will be
guided and implemented as directed by the New Han^shire Department of Energy (NH Energy) in this
contract and, from lime to time, in BWP Subgrantee Notices or other communications. The Contractor
agrees to revise BWP practices and procedures to incorporate instructions from NH Energy.

Contractor agrees to incorporate changes to the NH Building Weatherization Program as prescribed by
NH Energy to improve program delivery. Contractor further agrees to perform all weatherization
services in a manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs
for low income households in order to provide the best collaborative services for those households.

2. This BWP contract period, to be known as "BWP22," will commence upon approval of this contract by
the Governor and Executive Council, and will have a completion date of December 31,2022, also
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

3. BWP funds, which are the subject of this contract, shall not be expended for health and safety purposes.
However, in projects where BWP money is used without any federal Weatherization Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved - in oier words, where there is no money for the installation of health
and safety measures - then that BWP project may include the cost of incidental repair measures (see the
NHPolicies and Procedures Manual) if, by so doing, the cumulative SIR for the entire project is not
brought down to below 1.

4. No portion of the BWP funding in this contract is set aside for training and technical assistance
(T&TA). However, Contractormay choose to expend some or all of the designated administrative
funds on T&TA activities. Appropriate back-up and justification for the use of those funds will be
required by NH Energy prior to reimbursement.

5. During the contract period, the Contractor agrees to complete weatherization services on the number of
units that is the result of dividing the Contractor's PY22 BWP allocation by $7,500. NH Energy
understands that (he actual number of BWP completions will likely differ from that number due to the
unpredictability of heating system costs, etc., but NH Energy expects to see monthly BWP payment
requests from the Contractor in order to monitor BWP spending progress. Unit completions will be
done to the standards and expectations presented in LIHEAP weatherization guidance, this contraa, and
theNH AV Policies and Procedures Manual, 2019 edition, section on BWP management.

a. The number ofdwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract. NH Eneigy reserves the right to review process under this contract
at any time and may utilize infonnation from such reviews to alter dwelling unit goals and funds
to be expended.

/  Exhibit B
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b. All funds provided to the Contractor under this agreement must be expended by December 31,
2022.

6. Effective April 1,2015, all work perfonned under the federal Weatherization Assistance Program
(WAP) in New Hampshire must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy's Quality Woik Plan (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). While
BWP work is to be managed mostly under DOE rules, and is therefore not subject to all of the same
specifications and requirements as WAP work, Contractor will manage BWP work in a manner which
provides clients with weatherization outcomes similar to those achieved under WAP guidance whenever
possible. The occasions when WAP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this document
(Exhibits).

7. Client eligibility for BWP-funded weatherization work should generally be the same as for WAP-
funded weatherization work: client income is to be no greater than 60% of the stale median income
(SMI).

8. BWP money may be "leveraged" (used in combination) with any otherweatherization funding source.
If WAP/DOE money is used in a dwelling weatherization project, and if the Subgrantec wishes to count
that project as a WAP/DOE completion, then the project must have at least one eneigy consCTvation
measure that meets the SIR test, that measure (or those measures) must be paid for with WAP dollars,
and the final inspection of the whole job must be done by a current BPI certified Quality Control
Inspector (QCI) and declared "WAP complete, ready forreimburscment."

9. BWP money may be used for either full dwelling weatherization upgrades or for heating system
improvements alone. Contractor is obligated under this contract to expend at least 50% of the
contracted BWP amount on heating system repairs and/or replacements.

a. The PY22 BWP package of forms (see item 12b, below) forreporting BWP expenditures will
include columns to make clear whenever BWP money was used:

i. for restoration of heating services (repair or replacement of inoperable heating
equipment),

ii. for prevention of heating system service loss (repair or replacement to avoid
approaching failure), or

iii. forsupplementingor fully supporting a whole house weatherization project, with space
to report when heating system work paid for with BWP funds is part of that whole
house upgrade.

10. The maximum amount of BWP money to be spent on any one dwelling project without an approved
waiver is $ 12,000. If the BWP budget for any one project must exceed that amount, a waiver must be
received from NH Energy. NH Energy will review all waiver requests promptly and will provide
approval when possible. However, applying the expenditure guidelines in the 1^2 2 NH LIHEAP State
Plan, NH Energy will not approve total BWP expenditures on any one dwelling weatherization project
that exceed $15,000. This total is cumulative, summing the BWP expenditures made during all visits to
that dwelling (including amounts from program years in which the name of the LIHEAP-funded
weatherization program may have been different).

11. BWP production includes:

a., Weatherization upgrades which arc commensurate with a work plan developed from a thorough
dwelling energy audit and a TREAT model prepared by a qualified (BPl-certified) Building
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Analyst or Energy Auditor or Quality Control Inspector who has developed the woik plan (the
energy conservation measures - ECMs - to be installed) using either the "benefit/cost ratio"
(B/C) methodology as defined by the utilities' Home Energy Assistance (HEA) program or the
"savings to investment ratio" (SIR) methodology as defined by the US DOE for use in WAP.
The SIR methodology must beused to justify the installation of any ECMs which are to be paid
for with WAP funds.

b. Final inspections which determine:
i. whether the project's work plan was appropriate and complete, taking into account the

methodology-B/C or SIR-used by the energy auditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the prc-wcathcriEalion condition ofthebuilding, etc.

ii. whether that appropriate work plan was fully and effectively implemented in the
dwelling, providing the client with a comprehensive energy-saving weathaization
outcome, or, in the case of healing system only improvements, providing the client with
a safe and efficient and fully operational home heating system.

c. In projects where B WP money is used alongside WAP money in the same dwelling (and there
may be other funding sources as well), that project's ECMs which are to be paid for using BWP
and/or WAP funds must be completed using the WAP rules and standards, including the
installation ofonly those measures which individually achieve an SIR equal to or greater than 1,
the use of a certified Quality Control Inspector to perform the final inspection, etc.

d. In projects where no WAP money is involved, the fmal BWP inspection may be performed by a
person holding a current BP! certification in at least one of the following areas: Building
Analyst, Energy Auditor, or Quality Control Inspector.

e. Because BWP money is hot WAP money, BWP money may be used in weatherization upgrades
to dwellings which have received WAP-funded or BWP-flinded upgrades more recently than
the 15-year rolling time paiod which governs WAP re-weatherization by presenting a waiver
request to NH Energy. However;

i. re-weatherization should be done sparingly, remembering that there are thousands of
potential clients who have received no weatherization services at all;

ii. careshouldbetaken,asalways,toavoidcvcnthcappcaranceoffavoritism;
iii. all BWP-funded second visits to previously wcathcrizcd dwellings, whethcrthat

weatherization work was done with WAP or BWP or HEA funds, must be preceded by
receipt of an approved waiver from NH Energy.

12. The tracking of BWP jobs will include:
a. Contractor preparation and maintenance of a client file on every BWP job. Contractor will

utilize a filingprotocol which allows recovery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed at that address, etc., even if no WAP money was used.
Future CAP agency WAP Directors need to be able to check on weatherization work completed
in dwellings, even when WAP money was not involved.

b. The use of a separate BWP reimbursement request package/spreadsheet package supplied by
NH Energy. All jobs with any BWP money invested must be submitted for reimbursement on
the BWP set of forms. If a particular job also includes the useofany WAP money, then that job
will have to be submitted for WAP reimbursement as well, using the WAP reimbursement
request forms. Therefore, if a single weatherization job uses funds from two difTerenl
weatherization funding sources managed by NH Energy, that job must be submitted to NH
Energy twice in order for it to be reimbursed for the correct amount from each source.
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13. This agreement consists of the following documents: a completed P-37 form, and Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E, F, G, H, I, and J. All exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

Exhibit B

\jr— Page 4 of 4'
InitiaIs E>ate

Award #G-220INHLIEA,CFDA #93.568



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of (he satisfactoiy performance of (he services set forth in Exhibit B, the State agrees to
pay the Contractor, Tri-County Community Action Program, up to the total sum of:

$273,900.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
$ 13,695.00 is the maximum to be spent on BWP related administrative costs,
$260,205.00 (the balance) to be spent on weatherization activities (Program Activity).

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Conlrxloronly after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to NH Energy. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be
made in accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance
basis; limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate
cash requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the purpose of the program. The Contractor must
make timely payments to (sub)contractors in accordance with the contract provisions. Contractor shall
submit a payment request to NH Energy for each month of the contract period using the forms to be
provided by NH Energy for that purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at NH
Energy no later than the 15'^ day of each month or the first business day following the 15'''day.

Administrative costs are provided in order to support a specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Administrative funds may be pro-rated by NH Energy if production unit completions dp not
meet expected production goals.

NH Energy will also be allowed, as a function of its administrative oversight, to modify contracted budget
amounts as necessary to ensure the efricient and effective operation of the contract as long as these
modified expenditures do not exceed the total "Contracted Amount" as specified above.

All obligations of the State, including the continuance of any payments, arc contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Dmg-Free Woriq>lace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVU)UALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations
were amended and published as Part IT of the May 25, 1990. Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Energy
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) TTie grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, contM

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

30 Exchange,Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2022

Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

Name and Title of-Aiithorized Contrfiblor Representative

1
^ctor Representative Signature Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Graiit
Low-Iocoroe Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program

BWP Program

Contract Period; January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2022
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Contractosj^epresentative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy (NH Energy) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
Energy determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH Energy to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH Energy.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NH Energy, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, NH Energy may tenninate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER

RESFONSIBLLITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont^d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibiliti' Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(11) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, thefl, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a goverrunenlal entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b)
of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(12) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," withput modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier covered tiwsactiops.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO
CohtractJfQepTese'ntative Signature . Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Contractor ifcre'sentative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. ig|9c>|3i>3\
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to
children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity,.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/grantee f\irther agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Contractor f^presentative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County County Community Action Program Inc.

Contractor Name Date
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DOEF 1600.5(06-94)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCENONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY

ASSISTED PROGRAMS

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection ofinformation is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection ofinformation. Send comments residing this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of intdrmation, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 -GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Papen^'ork Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Tri-Countv Community Action Program (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to comply
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 ofthe Federal Energy Administration
Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 ofthe Eneigy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title IX
of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482),
Section 504 oftheRehabilitation Actof 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-
135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act ofl968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of
1977 (Pub.L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Actof 1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and
Title 10, Code of Federal Regulatioas, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and regulations issued
pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant receives Federal
assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferec.for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of theproperty. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates theApplicant for theperiod during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by die Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subreciplent Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
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DOEF 1600.5(06-94)
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subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Departnient of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services arc or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effectiveparticipation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first para^aph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by ihc Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (Including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of infonnation pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Officeof Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts orother Federal assistance extended after the
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
pcrson(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be fiimishedrio the Applicant upon written
request to DOE).

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Tri-County Community Action Program
30 Exchange Street
Berlin.NH 03570

Signature

Exhibit I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010,
to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier su b -gran lsof$25,000or
more. If the initial award is below $25,000but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the
award.

In accordance with 2 CFRPart \10{ReportingSuha\va}xi andExeciitive Compefisation Information), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptiveof the purpose of the funding action

• 7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of p^ormance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10) Total compensation and names of thetopfivc executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 andl.l2ofthe General
Provisions execute the followingCertification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicableprovisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and/iKransi^ency Act,

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

(ContractoTFfepresentativeSignature) (AuthorizedContractorRepresentativeName & Title)

Tri-County County Community Action Program. \Ql^O

(Contractor Name) . (Date)

Exhibit J
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization 'spreceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

WO  YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3, Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 ofthe Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the foDowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:
V

Name: Amount:

Exhibit J
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. WUliam M. Gardner. Secretary of SUte of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY

action program, inc. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965.1 fiirther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concemed.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005362631

%

u.

•0

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of May A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

I, ^VOA'^b , Board Chair of Tri-Countv Community Action Program. Inc.
(Namq (Corporation name)

(Hereinafler the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly
(State)

elected and acting Board Chair of the Corporation; (2) 1 maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on 51 . such authority

(Date)

to be in force and eff^t until December 31.2022.
(Contract termination date)

The pcrson(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

/eanne Robillard ^ ^ Chief Executive Officer
(Name) (Position)

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer
(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(Stale of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair of the corporation this

day of^^ .

STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Coos

Bo hair

On this day of 20<a^ , before me, . Christina Morin the
undersigned Officer, personally appeared gcLV\Au who acknowledged her/himself
to be the Ch^ir ^ ^ T ftOAVtj C^Wwvwva^ AcWa . a
corporation and that she/he as such bfeing authorized to do so, ex^utetf the
foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained. ^

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

u»v convnissioo cxp ^^ —
NotaiyRi^'c/Justicc of the Peace
Commis'sioEE.xpiration'Date:



DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 133090A6.BB6C-46E4-B08W)D677720CB24

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

19FY21 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Authority to Sign

The Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the "Corporation")
takes the following action.

Resolved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Jeanne L.
Robillard, or the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Pilotte and Chief Programs Officer
(CPO) Kristy Letendre acting as a designee of the CEO, are hereby authorized on behalf of this
Corporation to enter into contracts with the Federal Government, State of New Hampshire, and
any other parties as deemed necessary and to execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instruments and amendments, revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deemed
necessary, desirable or appropriate for the corporation; this authorization being enforced and
effective until June 30", 2022.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on May 25'
2021

By;
Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

,  ' 0»cMHgi>«< fcy:

By:_ I
Name: George Sykes
Title: Treasurer



ACORrf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMIDO/YTYY}

09A)6/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie») must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endoraed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condltlone of the policy, certain policies may require an endoraement A atatamenl on
thia certificate doea not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCCR

FIAI/Crots insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

Andrea NickEn

SIP'S- (603)669-3218 (603)64W331 .
Manch.cert8®cro8sagency.com

INSURERISIAFFOROIMO COVERAGE NAICa

msuRERA- Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berfn NH 03570

MsiiRFR a • Granite State Hestlh Cere end Human Services Self- 524292

INSURER C:

mSURERD:

MSURER a:

INSURER F:

IKSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDtCATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOrTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONSANDCONDfTIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID OjMS.

POCtCYEFF
TYPE OF INSURANCE rOUCYNUMOER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL liABLriY

CLAMS4MDE OCCUR

GENX AGGREGATE UMIT APiPLIESPER:

POLICY I I ̂  I 1 LOC
OTHER:

PHPK22BS454

IMM/DD/YYYYI

07/01/2021

IMMCD/YYYYI

07/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
DUIAOETDREmea
pRgMisEs iE»

MED EXP lAny oo> pFflon)

P6RS0WAL » AQV INJURY

GENERAL AOOREOATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AOQ

1.000.000

100.000

5,000

1,000,000

3.000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOaLE LIAWUTY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SMGLE UMIT
(Fn ifTfrftmll

1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par p«wi)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2293461 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 BODILY PJAJRY (Par acOMnl)

PROPERTY OAhlAOE
IPw Boeldani)

UMBRELLA HAD

EXCESS LIAS

OCCUR

CLAIMSAIADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
2,000,000

PHUB774416 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 2,000,000

DEO I X| RETENTION i '^0-0^
WORKERS COHPCNSAnON

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOIVPARTNERCXECUTIve
OFFICERMEMSER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
t yea. daaotoa undo'
DESCWIPTON OF OPERATIONS baktw

s
PER
STATUTE

OTH.

ER

0 KCHS20210000428 (3s.) NH 02/01/2021 02/01/2022
E.L EACH ACCOENT

1,000.000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
1.000.000

E.L, DISEASE-POLICYUMfT
1,000.000

Professlona! Liability
PHPK2293454 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

oesCRIPTlOW OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS t VEHICLES (ACDRD tOl, AddMaoal Ratnarlta Sehadida, may ba ittachad W raora apaca la ra^ulrad)

Refer (o poBcy for exdusionafy endorsements and special provisions.

NH Depsrimeni of Energy

21 South Fruit SL.Ste. 10

Concord NH 03301
I  1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE W/TH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AtmiORlZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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To the Board of Directors of cektified public accountants
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate wolfeboro • north coway
Berlin, New Hampshire Dover • concord

STRATHAiM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Stafemenfs
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30. 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Tri-Couhty Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2019
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements In our report dated October 21, 2019. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federa! Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information Is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards In considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 28. 2020.
North Conway, New Hampshire



TRI-CnUNTY COMMUNHTY. ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30.2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $  2,257,081 $  1,400,750

Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program . 796,937 583,963

Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1,274,083

Property held for sale 47,000 47,000

Pledges receivable 307,017 231,161
ij

Inventories 102,430 85,886

Prepaid expenses 77.882 34.037

Total current assets 4,911,199 3,656,880

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences

Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

12,344,805

(5,601.944)

6,742,861

384,711

437,843
3,554

180,427
243,779
49,059
137,304

"181,463
850.982

2,084.411

4,792,557

6,876,968

4,565,253
596.550

5,161,803

12,086,152
(5,178.535)

6,907,617

418,936

$ 12,038,771 $ 10.983.433

148,449
4,870

221,571
204,079
210,952
89,524
197,157

598,195

1,674,797

5,227,835
3,355

6.905,987

3,399,192
678,254

4,077,446

$ 12,038,771 $ 10,983.433

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI^OUWTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. tNC. AND AFFILtATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts

Program furvJing
UliUty programs
In-kind contributions

Contributions

Fundraising
Rental Income

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sale

Without Donor

Restrictions

$  14.425.841

1.084.133

1.923.653

455.826

326,215
32.544

635.559

923

2.225

Other revenue 4.379

Total revenues and other support 18.891.298

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 565.176

Total revenues, other support, and

net assets released from restrictions 19.456.474

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund 1,047,356

Head Start 2.769,065

Guardianship 769,597

Transportation- 991,504

Volunteer 94,845

Workforce Development 346,114

Carroll County Dental 653.810

Support Center 558.244

Homeless 800.148

Energy and Community Development 7.824.201

Eider 1.149,136

Housing Services 220.900

Total program services 17.224.920

Supporting Activities:
1.082.613General and administrative

Fundraising 2.880

Total supporting activities 1.065.493

Total functional expenses 18.290.413

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1.166.061

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.399.192

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  4.565.253

With Donor

Restrictions

S  483.472

483.472

(565.176)

(81,704)

(81,704)

676.254

1.065.493

18.290.413

1.084.357

4.077.446

2020 2019

Total Total

$  14.909,313 $ 14,475.114

1.084,133 1.167.509

1.923.653 1.287.103
455.826 477,167

326,215 230,986
32.544 39,303

635.559 625.046

923 643

2.225 (32.892)
- (255,492)

4.379 196.384

19,374,770 18.210,851

19.374.770 18.210.851

1.047.356 950.639

2.769.065 2,758.782
769,597 767.241

991,504 916.089

94,645 118.408

346.114 354.263

653,810 747,474

558.244 355,206

800,148 714.066

7.824.201 7,788.560

1.149.136 .  1.191.571
220,900 172.852

17.224.920 16.835,151

1.062.613 1.032.207

2.880 9,895

1.042.102

17.877.253

333,598

3.743.848

596,550 i  5.161.803 i 4.077,446

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI^QUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2Q2Q AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVmES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
(Gain) loss on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sale

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net repayment on demand note payable
Repayment on long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donated

2020 2019

$  1,084,357 $  333.598

436.197 448,556

(2.225) 32.892

-
255,492

(48,769) (117.426)

(75,856) (18,954)

(16,544) 1,683
(43.845) (8,397)

(41.144) (15,705)

39.700 958

(161,893) 23.444

47.780 (42.364)

(15,694) 6,088

252.787 211.027

1.454.851 1.110,892

4.495 14,283

(273.711) (95,588)

(269.216)

(145.884)
(4.671).

(150.555)

1.035,080

2.403.649

$  131.879

{81.305)"

(516.022)
(141,273)

(4.446)

(661.741)

367,846

2.035.803

$  3,438.729 $ 2.403.649

152.078.

18,830

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COLJNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financiai statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, inc. and its affiiiate,. Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and .allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. AH children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 413
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public. ^

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively sen/ed during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

over 27,955 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.



The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services Including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

iSuDDort Center
The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and

stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment: emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.
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Low-Income Weatherization

The NH' weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Sen/ices

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.
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Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $596,550 and $678,254
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

4 «

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage'or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows;

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

13



Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $181,463 and $197,157 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-proftt Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2016.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe thfey have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the

Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

14



Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted Interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than

one year after their due. dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $307,017 and $231,161,
respectively. This amount is included In grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

16



The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30. 2019 was 10.4%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was approximately 10.82%, which is
allowable because it ts less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy.

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $25,483 and
$11,698, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
''Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2020 and 2019.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230): Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity in
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. The amendments require that a statement of
cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling beglnning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the Organization's fiscal year
ending June 30. 2020 and has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.
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During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and. the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made {Topic 958). This accounting
standard is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional.

ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines whether a resource provider
is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant. If the resource provider does
receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the transaction is an
exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the
transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June
30, 2020 and 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material
impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of.their adverse impact on tt\e Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Organization,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020
and 2019:

■  2020 2019

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 2,257,081 $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1,274,083
Pledges receivable 307.017 231.161

Total financial assets 3.886.950 2.905.994
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Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor, restrictions

Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year

Amounts not available within one year

596,550

(410.015)

186^535

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 3.700.415

678,254

(565.176)

113.078

S  2.792.916

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,860,000 and $2,786,000 respectively,
at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial Institutions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
balances In interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was approximately $2,653,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively, of deposits held In excess of the FDIC limit. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2020

$ 2,257,081
796,937
384.711

LM2&Z2S

2019

$ 1,400,750
583,963
418.936

Cash Restrictions

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 In the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $20,040 and $20,010, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30. 2020 and 2019. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2020 and 2019 was $174,626 and $174,451, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included In restricted

cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2020. and 2019 was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial

Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2020 and 2019
was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. This was donated to another non-profit
Organization during the year ended June 30,2020;

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $190,045 and $179,277, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2020 and 2019, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $102,430 and $85,886, respectively.

NOTES. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2020 and
2019, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $243,779 and $204,079,
respectively.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020;

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,810,288 $ 3,753,302 $6,056,986
Equipment 2,105,950 1,848,642 257,308
Construction

in progress 4,727 - 4,727
Land 423.840 : 423.840

S12.344.805 S 5.601.944 $ 6.742.86_1

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,709,749 $3,469,618 $6,240,131
Equipment 1,950,063 1,708,917 241,146
Construction

in progress 2,500 - 2,500
Land 423.840 : 423.840

£12.086.152 $5.178.535 £6.907.617

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$435,310 and $447,669, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounting
to $47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492 in 2019.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of
the following:
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2020 2019

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 110,824 $ 124,867

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 307,719 328,896

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021. 4,478 9,618

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 4,228 7,642

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 3,948 7,385

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 705 2,331

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 7,294 9,739

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 387,227 395,429
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2020 2019

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

2,547,308 2.634,595

1,617.600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

5,241,331 5.388,102

(10.9311 (11.8181

5,230,400 5,376,284
(437.843V ,(148.4491

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

437.843
123,107

485,399
118,243
122,486

3.954.253

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.
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NOTES. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGAHONS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consisted of
the following:

2020 2019

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 1.213 $ 3,291

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 944 2,261

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 1.397 2.673

3.554 8,225

Less current portion f3.554) (4.870)

£  : 2 1255

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2020 were as
follows:

Year ending
June 30 Amount

2021
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NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

.The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization'was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. The unsecured
revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,004 and $181,127, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2021 $ 127,803
2022 7.321

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

25



Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of lime to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there Is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
approximately $14,380,020 (74%) and $13,951,828 (77%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 68% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 307,017 $ 231,161

FAR 102,998 , 117,470

Restricted Buildings 85,713 87,541

DOE 46,287 -

FAR/EAR 24,350 11,290

Loans - HSGR 22,029 19,907

RSVP Program Funds 5,887 7,056

Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,571

RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 -

Loans - HHARLF 104 -
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BWP/HRRP Program 94
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142,190
Support Center - 25,939
Weatherization - 25,000
Senior Meals - 5,130
Head Start : 3.999

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 596.550 $ 678.254

NOTE 14. CGMMITMENTS AND CONTiNGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
" terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

*

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
2020, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.
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note 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing' North. Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD. the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $155,278 and $129,407 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2020 and 2019. respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $31,049 and $46,514 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2020 and. 2019,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted. HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

V

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial.position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28,
2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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TRWCQUMTV COMMUNITY ACTION PWOGWAM IWC

SCHEDULE OF EXPEHOITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
FOB THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. ?0?0 ,

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUUSER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

U.S. Dco«ftn»nt of H«»lth »nd Human S»vi'cw

Head SUft

Head Start

LowMncoma Home Eneroy Assistance
Lcw-lncome Home Energy Assistance
Low-kxome Home Energy Assistance
Low-lncame Home Energy Assistance

AGING CLUSTER

Special Programs lor the - Title III. Part B - Grants (or Supportive Services ana Senior Cenltri (SEAS)
Special Programs tor the Aging - Tale III. Part B - Grams for Supportive Services and Senior Centers (Sr. Wheels)

Special Programs (or the Aging - Title IB. Part C • Nutrition Servicas (Congregate & HO Meals)

Kuirttion Services Incentive Program (NSIP)

93.600

93.600

93.568

93.968

93.568

93.568

93.044

93.044

93.045

93.053

GRANTOR'S

IDENTtFYING

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDTTURES

Slate of New Hampshire Office o< Energy end Planning
Slato of New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning
State o( New HanpsNre Offica c4 Erietgy attd Planning
State ol New Hampslwe Office oi Ertergy and PianrBng

State ol New Hampshire OfSca ol Energy artd Planning

Slate ol Now Hampshire Departnem of Health artd Human Services

State of New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Sanricas

State ol New Hampshire Depermem ol Heenh and Human Services

01CH1C0004)&^

OICH1000006-00

TOTAL

G-1091NHLIEA

G-20B1NHUEA

G-t9etNHU£A 1056420

G-20eiNHLlEA 1056420

TOTAL

18AANHT3SS

512-500352

TOTAL

541-500388

NONE

CLUSTER TOTAL

S  1.595,937
1.042.272

2.638.209

120.562
5.404.384

84.685
246.633

5,856.564

7.247

122.681

129.926

279.797

95.471

505.196

Community Setvioes Block Grant

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assbtenee lor Needy Famiies (NHEP Workplace Success)
Temporary Assbtance lor Naedy FamBies (JARC)

HIV Care Formula Grants (Ryan VMte Care Program)

Social Services Blade Grant (Title XX l&R)
Social Services Block Grant (Title XX HD)
Social Services Block Gram (Guardianship)

Promoting Sale wnd Stable Fan^li^amBy Violence Prwerdon and Services/Obcretionary

PreveruatK-a HHS Block Grant & Iryury Praveruion end Control Research

Projects for Assistance in Trar«ition(rom Hotnelessness (PATH)

Special Prograrts (or the Aging Title IV end TlUe II Oisaetionary Projtcis

Total U.S. Department ol Health and Human Services

93.569 Stale ol New Hampshire Oepenmcm ol I leaBh end Humen Services

93.558 Southern New Hampshire Senrices. Inc.

93.558 State ol New Hampshire Depamnem d Health and Human Servicas

93.917 State d New Hampshire Department d Health and Human Services

93.667 Slate d New Hampshire Depanmem d Hetnn and Hunan Services
93.667 State d New Hampsi^ DeportmwH d Health and Human Services
93.667 Siata d New Hampshlra Deponmem d Health and Human Services

93.556 8 93.592 State d New Hampshire Coalition agoinst Domestic and Secual VAotenca

93.136 8 93.758 Stata d New Hampsdre Coafiticn against Domestic and Sexual VAolenea

93.150 Slata d New Hampshire Bureau d Homaiessncss and Housing

93.048 Stale d New Hampsdre Oepertmam d Health and Humen Services

681.306

16-OHH$-BWW-CSP-05

ie02NHTANF

CLUSTER TOTAL

530-500371

545-500387

544-500386

102-500731

TOTAL

SPROV

SVP

05-65-42-423010-7926

318.092

24.800.

343.792

0.495

111.166

84.819
13.695

209.710

2.602

10.370,306



TWt^QUWTY COMMUWITY ACTION PftOQIUM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDTTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR EWDgP JUME »■ 2020

FEDERAL GRAKTORffROGRAM TITLE

WMihenzBtion Atatstsnea (or Low-incomo Penons

Total U.S. Depafttnenl a( Energy

UA CBfueraWon for N»i>on*l and CommunitT Servtce
Retired and Sartor Vohmeer Program

Totd U.S. Corporation (or NstiOfMl and Conxnunfly Ser/lce

U.S. Deoartnwii of Anrtctrmrre
Chid artd Aim Care Food Program

Total U.S. Oeparonera 0( Agrtoiure

Emergency Food S Sheiier Program (FEMA)

Emergency Managemert Performance Grants (FEMA)

Totrt U.S. Department of Homeland Secunty

Crane Vloim Assistance (VOCA)

Sexual Assarti Senfces FoniMia Program (SASP)

OVW Tactvtical Assistance irtitiative

Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Oepertmerrt of TranaoortaHon
Formula Grenis lor Rural Areas (Section 5311)

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER
Enharcxd Mobtty Of Santars and Individuats wih OisatiBties

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. Defrtment ef Houslne arrd Urfran Oereioorwem
Emergancy Sofutions Grant Program

Continuum ol Cara Program (HOIP)
Continuum ol Care Program (HOIP)

TocM U.S Oepatimant of Housing and Urttan Oevaiopment

FEDERAL
CFDA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH
GRAHTOR-S NAME

GRANTOR'S
IDENTtFYINO

NUMBER
FEDERAL

EXPENDfTURES

81.042 Staia of New Hampshire Governor'* OfAce of Enwgy & Comirurlly Servfca*

to.&sa State ofNewHarrpirtre Department 01 Education

97.024

97.042 Slate Of New Harr^sMra Oapartmeni of Safety

1S.57S State of New Hampshire CoeBtfonagatRStDomastic and Sexual violanca

16.017 Siata ol New Hampshire CoaBiion against DoratrJc and Sewal VMence

16.526 Grafton County Cotal

20.509 Stale 01 New Hampshire Oeparanem ol Transportation

20.513 State of New KamptnimOepanmeniolTransponation

14.231 ' State erf New HampshiieDepartmarKolHaafln and Human Services

14^67
14.267

Si3» of New Hampshire Oepenment ol Heattii end Humen Seniees
Sieie ol New Hampshire Oepenment of HaalSi and Human Serviixs

EE000703S i 465.349

t 485349

t9SRANH00t % 76.072

\ 76.072

NONE s 156.225

t 159^5

$ 29.388

EMB-2017-EPC0005-S01 43.062

s 72.470

NONE i 224.910

16 306

OVW-2016-13829 61.303

s 302.519

NH-t6-X046 5 515.335

NH-65-X006 18.034

CLUSTER TOTAL 18.034

s 533.366

102-500731 S 100.662

SS-201»6riH»«1«eM-«

NHCOOLITIIOS

182.876
72.548

10TAI. 255.424

s 356.065



•ntueouwTv cowwuwfTY *ctow pwqcwam. inc:

SCHEOULe OF EXPENOTTURES OF FEOCRAL AWAA05

FOB THE YEAR EWDeOJWEW. KM

FEDERAL

CFDA

FEDERAL CRAtYTOfVPROCRAU TITLE

PASS-THROUGH

GRAHfTOR'S NAME

CRANTOtrS

DENTFYMG

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

IIS Daaartrrtcniaf Labor

WlAIWlOA CLUSTER

WIAIWlOA AduH Program

VMA/WlOA Distocattd Wothar Fermula Grants

17.25a

17J78

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Soumem New Hampahira Services. Inc.

20tS^)0M

201S-C004

3S,7a

22.212

Total U.S. Oopaivnaw ef Labor CLUSTER TOTAL n.Beo

U.S. DrMrtrrwrd of tha TraeaoiTr

Cercnavinjs Relief Fund

Cdronavbus Rafief Fund

21.0H -

21.019

State of NH Oepertmenl of htfS. Ctvilien of LT Supports and Borvlcas
Governor's Oftiee ef Cmergertoy ReW end Recovery
COVID-19 Long Term Care StaMzeden Program

99.460

)S.460

Tout U.S. OeparVTtcM ef me Treanay
124.900

TOTAL EXPENOITUftES OF FQERAl. AWARDS
12.&29.27B

NONFEOERAL

New Hampihlia Pubdc UUbias Compiny - Home Erwcgy Aasistanee 1.639.9SS

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

TTm (ctwtiuM ol e>9»ndiliM o( F«defM Av^fC* phi SehMrfe) Indudta «>• li<JifM iwmH KaMly ol Trt<««.ly Cammunily AeSen Pnntw". Int. urri* progf«n» o( Vm Immm jovwmiMn! tor M ytar enM Am* 80.2020. Thi Wormilteh in iMi
ia pc*s«tM In «r»t tha tcqurvncnts c< TUi 2 U.S.CoM d FMaral RaguWtons Pwi 200. Unlom AdmWMnChc fte^ietpeita. C«*l RamgMM. andAudi R»qui«/n»no tu Ppdiraf A«Ms (Uniterm GuManci). Bmuh ne S<h«Ui praMru

edr a iMOaO panton ef ma opoMoiM of TrLCotaar Cenuiuiiiy Action Progmm. Inc.. K to ml Mended to and does nM preserd ma lifttnelal poaUan. changes h net assets, or casn Oovrs of the Organizaticn.

MOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIOfflCANT ACCOUNTING POLKJES

Expendbxts rapenad cn ma Schadula are tapenad on ma accrual basto ol aceounUng. SuO> ajmandllura* are racogniMd felearing me coal prtidples ceroalrwd In urdorm Gudanea, etherem eertah types et erjMruMues are rw*
raarmursamenL Ncgadva amoms shewn cn iha Schadda rapresani ei^ustmenu or cradHs made in ma normal eaune of business to amewas reported as aaparanurea m prior yMrs.

alewabio et are tnatod as to

MOTE C • IW0IR6CT RATE

Tri-Coiaity Conanunby Aoion Program Inc. hat olocted lo not usa lha 10-patcant da mMnto indbcci cost rsta aDorrM lasdtt ma Uniform Giidaiica.
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TRUCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc..(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or' a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies,in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of Its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control, or on compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire

33



Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFP-SSIDNAI. ASSOCIATION

CtHTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANl^

WOLFtBORO • NORTH CjOmH
'  DOVER • CONCORD

STRATH/VM

TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTinN PROGRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2020. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2.U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary.in the circumstances. ^

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federai Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an.opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does -not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify" all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider, to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CntJNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020'

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
•are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as rhajor programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. CSBG - CFDA #93.569

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Home Energy Assistance (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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TRI-COUNTY
COMMUNITY ACTION
Serving Co6s. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

Board of Directors

FY2022

Coos County Carroll Couiity Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzo

Business

Brian Hoffman

Business

Charles Monaghan

Business

Linda Massimilla

Elected Ofncial

Ruth Heintz

Business

Richard Mcleod

Low Income

Treasurer

George Sykes

Elected Official



Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel

BWP22 Contract

Name Job Title Salary % Salary paid Amount paid
from contract from contract

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $132,000 0% 0

Randall Pllotte Chief Financial Officer $85,000 0% 0

Kristy Letendre Chief Programs Officer $80,000 0% 0

Gerald Millikin Department Head $55,000 0% 0

Nathan Mills Weatherlzation Director $50,000.68 20% $15,000.20
Dennis Downs Production Supervisor $52,000 15% $7,800
Jessica Young Program Supervisor $35,360 30% $10,608
Samantha Roy Home Heating and Repair $33,280 100% $33,280

Replacement Coordinator



tFeaomc L. StobUlard

rftRE CTHKIVCTIIIS

Piogtsini development, rainsgcmcnt And ftdtninistrftdon * Coinmunity coDaborarions
Development of policj', protocol, and service dclrvcrj' to meet ftinder standards

Grant writing and management * Budget pctfbnnaace and financial reporting
InnovatitT solutions & problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Iraaginarion • Dcterminatinn ♦ Fortitude

PBftFESSmiVAI. EKPERHENOE

ItieCoamiy Commmuij Aciion Programst Inc.
Chief Ezecniive Otfieer
Berlin, IVH 2Bi€ ' ewtrr^wt* FT 9mpU»tfm«iU

TrUCoiin^ Commonhj Ac<1od Progrme, Inc.
Chief OpcraAing Officer
Berlin. NH 3016-2010

Responsible for the opcfations of six agcnq'Divisions widi l5 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Esscntiai duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditure
and budget pcifonnance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agcnq- defined strategic
goak; develop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal pcrfonnancc; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiarfves. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri«Coiiiity Commonft^ AcAion Prograina, Inc.
DMsion Director} TCCAP FrevcHAion Sendee*
BerKiuNH 3015-3016

ResponsUslc for four agency programs under die umbrella oi TCCAF Frcvention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; ̂cral o\xrsight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fiinders
and agenq-; develop fiindiaising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

TrhCocuiAj Commmiitj Action Pregromfl, Inc.
Pxogram/IHvltioii DicccAon SopporA Center ot Borch Boitac
litAleton, New Hampcliire 30O7- 3615
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter, write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for flinders and parent agcnq- oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocaq'
programs to ensure compliance widi grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fuodraising and maiieting strategies; parricipatc in state and local collaboradons to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal \nctim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative trsdmony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JLRobmard*2

Booklbccpcrt Women's Boral Bnlrepreneorial Network (WRE^
Bethlehem, NU current PT cmploTmciit
Re^)onsible for gnnt bscal trackmg, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekfy payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end recondHations for bank accounts,
credit ca^s, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for ditee retail
locadons, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Trft-Coonty Cemmimity Actloii Pk^grams, Ine*
Direci Servieeo/Volmiieer CoeatKnntori Soppoori Center at Bnreb House
Littleton, New Hampshire 1997 So 2007
Provide advocacy snd direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruic, train and supervise staff, volunteeis, and incems; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Direetsnn Haverhill Area Jnvenilc Dfvcrsion Progmm
Woodsville, New HnBipafaiie 1999-2M1
Recruit, train, and siq>ervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community' programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain coUabotative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Coimsriur/Title I Teadbert NordserB Fanrily InstitDte-Jefferson Shelter
Jeffeveoa, New Horapebire 1990*1998
Provide individual st^pondve counseling to adjudicated youdi, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, si4>ejvisc youth in daily Ihdog skills

Edncation

BS in Humnn Servicee, Spnngfield College School of Hanuan Servicee. Boeton, MA
CtiminaJ Justice Concentration, Gradfiattd wHb 4.0 CPA

AS in Drug and Aleohol BAobilitation Couoeeling <DABC Programl
Soothem Connecticut Comnumity College, New Haven, Ct

Sfkilla. Profcwsiopal Ecad^ralai||i nwi^ Affilintinna

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem TwiceElected 2006-2010

♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-200^^ Tnatunr 1996-1998
♦ Chairman, HaverhiU Area Pamll)'Violence Council 1998-2003

♦ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Pmgram Inscnictor #NH16199
^ Regjstered Sexual Harassment Prevcntioa Trainer in the State of New Hampshire

♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrq}tcneunal Network 2014; ItuihidualMmbtr2008-2017
V Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015

♦ Bethlehem Consen'ation Commission 2006 - turmit

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
V Bethlehem Gdzen's Advisory Comnutree on Req'cUng 2007-2010

♦ UccnscdPoster Parchi^ State ofNH 2000-2006

♦ Smail Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015-atmnt
♦ SpcakeasyTdo Jazz Vocalist/SwcetJammSwiogBaodJaza Vocalist 1997-turrmi
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating Assodafion/lntcmational Skating Institute atrmd nut 1993



RANDALL S. PIL 0 TIE

SUMMARY

Accounting professional wifli over 29 yem ofexperience, of which 21 years were wth a stogie private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managtos acoounlmg professionals. Key comprtrncics mclode:

Financial Statements
Payroll
Budgeting

Accounts Payatoes
Bank Reconciliations
Cash Fow ManageiDciit

Inventory
Accounts Receivables

Audits

EXPERIENCE

Fixed Assets
SalesAJseTax
Forecasting

TRI-CQUNTY community action program inc.. Berlin,NH 06/2013-Present
CFO(2017-Present) , ̂  t. a
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor pafonnance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial managementsysteiM andactivities ofdie Ageiuy with abudgctof$18M.
.  Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and aocouating records for the Agency and outside

regulatory agencies. ^
• As a member of the senior management team, assists to the formulation and execution of corporate finance

policies, objectives and programa j-
•  Prepares program and agency budgets to conjunction vAih the CTO and Progr^ Directois. Plan, direct,

coordinate implement and evaluate fiscal pafonnance reviews ofTri-Counly CAPs divisions.
. Hire,tiam,dircctandcvahiatecmployccperforinancewithmlhcdqiartment;recamincndpTon»tions and salary

adjustments. „ , .
•  Provideasupcrvisionanddii«ctionforthcFaciiitie8MaDagcmcnlTcam,ensunngthatallraortgagc8. leases andcovenantsarcmatotainedforTri-County CAP'afaciUtics. Crcationoffive-yearcqwtalplaa

■  Rcvicwscashflowsforcachdivision, monitor cash mana^ment practices, and monitorinvestments associated
with each property.

•  Prepared five-year dAt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016-2017)

•  Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, caA receipts and fixed assets.

•  Prepare and supendsetheprodiKtionoffmancialstatemcnteinchJdmg Balance Sheet, Revenue and ExpenseRq>orts, and Cost Summaries on a montiily and annual basis.
• Maintain proper accountingconlrols on grants and cantributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and cxpaise

tracking to support periodic monitoring'sbyfundcrsandauditOT.
•  Ensure all balance Bhcet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconcUed periodically.
•  CoUaboratewifliDivisianDirectorstomanitardepflrtmcntalrevaiueandcxpcnMvawisbudgrt.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual fmancial reporting; and implemcntmg

departmental goals.
•  Pi^are audit schedules for external auditors.
•  Collaborate with external audhors in con^leting annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:

RFNT>JtnRmON GROUP- INC (f/kJa Bine Seal Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989^/2010



Asiittant ControDer (2005-2010)

• Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end closc^ consisting of the piepaiation o f a c ona olidatcd andindividual financial statcmcntmaccordanccwithGAAPfornmcmamifiictuiTiigplantsandllTcUil stores with
gross revenues in excess of S200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depredatioD.

• Managed, trained, imdsupervised a staffaccountantresponsibleforensuringacwratejoiimal entries, inventory
recohciliaticn, toonage tax retums, bank reconciliations, and assignment cffspecial projects.

• OversawaOaspects ofproprietaiy software^ muM-slatepayroll^stemfor 500 eiqiloyces. Prepared all federaland state payroll tax r^»rts,inclDdingquaitcrlyandycar-eDd returns,processing of Wls, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New Bngdaad and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared muM-aate salesAist tax returns and acted as point of ccntad for audits.
•  Pro-activcly coached and consulted plan! and store management on the annual budget development process.
• Oversaw montii-eDdaccnials.

• Assisted and reqionded to eodhais* requests on anmial audit
•  Filed ftnuiiwi fnmf.hi«e and abandoned property reports with approjsiate states.

Accounttug Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controllff'8 initiatives by providing supervision and ovenight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks onChart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and p^at of vendor's invoices, emplt^ce travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Snpcrvlaor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTPIERN TELECOM. INC.. Cpncoid, NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accoonts payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Franklin Pierce College. Concord, NH
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"]f human beings are perceived as potentials rather than
problems^ as possessing strengths instead ofweaknesses, as

unlimited rather than dull and unresponsive,then they thrive
andgrowtotheircapabilities."

-Barbara Bush

Etpericnce

July 2020-Pr«sent
Chief Prograros Officer* TCCAP, Inc

Responsible to provide leadership, supervision, oversight, and managcincnt of
the agency's programs and services directiy or through a program director or
manager as well as works with the Chief Executive Officer to develop ftito
business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
conqily with national program standards and state / federal governing laws and
requirements.

May 201&-Pre8ent
Divlrion Director^ TCCAP, Inc-Prevention

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
design, daily operation, compUancc, and financial solvency of the progi^
and fecilitjcs underPrevention Services which include Guardianship Services;
Homeless Programs, including Tyler Blain Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Services for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault,

Emergency Shelter Services at foe Support Center at Burch House

Sept 201 b-Preaent

Division Opmtions Coordinatof^ TCCAP, Inc- Prevaition

Responsible for monitoring compliance ofgrant del iverablcs and legal / ethical
integrity of programs and services offeredthrongbout the Division. Respcrasiblc
to conqnle and analyze division data; reporting trends and outcomes to Sr.

and local stakeholders. Responsible to develop, review, and
update program written policy, procedures, and work flows. Responsible for
program development and oversight

MBy2017-Auflu»t2018
North Country SUD Continnum of Care Fadhjgl^/il^ewl [TrilnslUonCoordinator'^North Country Health Consort^; ; \
COCF; The North Country Reejon's desigyVlrd siirtcJiaiBM rĉ ionsM^
workwith regional key stakeholders to condj^lh ctiqipVcl^isiveassds and gape.
aniiysis; reporting back findings to NH Dffljfe foe dcvclciimeaf \
of a comprehensive plan aimed to citfifcKp cfiectivc, .and well-'.

.*/-«— ~

I- ( ' s\ . ■ ' - ' *

V



Ei;

yt -

(I'yitggH)

MKRlfM

}. c

s t

IJ
♦

-u5f«a«u:i

aoopoains .f'- •/.

-  .

' i r.' .

April 2014-May 2017

Dhiston Director • TCCAP, Idc- Clinical Services

iSHesponsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the dcvelopinent,
Y^ign, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency ofthc programs and
r'wntics under Oinical Services including the Division of Alcohol and other
.SS|lServiccs, Friendship House; the region's 32- bed Residential Treatment

and the Tamwoith Dental Center Practice.

. ̂ . . 2014

fclate DivlsiOD Director cTCCAP, Inc- Division of Alcohol and Drugs
4p iconjunction widi the Division Director, responsible to pttMdo joint Sr.
't.cfii«ahip and oversight to the development, design, daily operation,
VdSliance, and financial solvency of the programs and facilities under the
JHvision of Alcohol and other Drug Services, inchiding Friendship House, the
region's 32- bed Residential Trcataicnt facility, the outiMtient SUD treatment
practice with 6 satellite sites throughout the 3 counties in the North Country and
the In^aired Driver Care Management Program.

Accomplishments

Friendship House New Cchstruction-Bethlehem, NH45.2 MIL - 2015-2018
17,588-sq ft. 32-Bcd Residential Subslance Use Disorder Treatment Facility
a  SiibmissioB of state and federal gram applications resulting in $2.7hflL in

awards & executed a pass roots advocacy campaign lecuring Ae remaining $2.5
MIL m anooymouj donations

•  Issued all final project spprovab on the design, project developtnenl,
construction. wbmtSMon of permit applications and town zoning reqnnemenls.
and licensure and compliance standards.

Implemented New Reimbursement System, 2015

•  ihentvkiop'sdeoendcDce on grant funding bysucoessflilly procuring
contracts ""tt with NH Medicald. MCO's. and Commerariinsurance companies creating eligibilityto fubtmtclaimsonafeo-for-«ctvic« basis
stabUizang revenue and enhancing rates for service.

•  SuccessflUlyregotiated a contract ameodmcnt with DHHS to e^jandbfilable
services to include Outpatient and Intensive Outpatient services resulting m an
increase to from SI.8 MIL to S2.5MIL

Expert Panelist - Guidance Document on Best Practices: Community-Based
MAT forOploid Use Disorders in New Hampshire, First Edition, 2016

Civic Invclvemept

MWV Siqjports Recovery ■
Nordi Country Serenity C^tJ BpD -
Stand-UpAndroscogginVjDllvyCoulkto' -
Piuject Aware, BHS.AdwprytkrjfO
Littleton ATOD Ccalititfb/ ̂  ^ '
Lancaster Area Coalitit^/; , ^

2019- Present

2bl7-Prcsent
2016 - Present

2016-2018

2017-Present

2018-Present

2016 NCHC Board of Dircctc-2017

Mbtnber.r

Member

Member

; Mfmbcr

; Men^
1
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Creative flair

[aging Community
iter

,  ,^ -r/C^ent "1 Office
Suijat)

^i^ution focused
f-fiHiiblem resolution
' '^lique leadership
J^ugh empowerment

''Detail oriented

Excellent Community
and political relations

Good sense of humor

Cultural intelligence

Versatile and

adaptable

Computer and
technology adept
Knowledgeable grant
writer

Creative strategic
planner
Advocacy

Excellent written and

oral communication
skills

Well- Informed in

policy and procedure
development

Proflcient in budget
development and
management

Lateral thinking and
logical reasoning
Innovative

Experienced non-
profit management

Approachable,
relatable, and relevant

Education

Plymouth State Untvenity, Plymouth NH.
2017-In Progress pusiness Administration
Ccurseworfc acconnting, economics, finance, management, marketing theories
and practices ofbusiness ethics and social responsibility, quantitative sldJIs to
analyze.
Wbhe Mountains Coimnuaity College, BerilnNH.
2015-2017 pusiness Administration
Coursework: management, accounting, finance, strategy, economics, statistics,
marketing, operations/project management, entrcprcneurship, and computer
applications. Completed requirements of the first two years of a four-year
business administration degree, AS-equivalcnt, 4.0 GPA
White Mountaini Community College, BerUn NH.
2011 [Leaderahip North Country
Coursewoit: The program selects a diverse group aspiring leaders in noitbem
New Hampshire through a competitive nomination and application process.
Candidates participate in a 9-month program focused on education, arts and
culture, leadership and civil eDgagement, travel and tourism, and govctnmcnt
and politics.

References

Available upon request
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Gerald F. Mllliken. Jr.

Executive Summaiv:

Enthusiastic, dedicated and hardworking professional, offering over 20 years of
broad-based experience In Project Direction, poBcy and procedural development,
training & development, budget administration and business operations within fast-
paced environment.

Experience:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Ine.
Department Head: Weatherizatlon & FacIDties Operatlocie

Berlin, NH
7-1-2020 to present

Design and Opefational guidance of Weatherization Programs and the Agencies Facilities
Department Ot>8en/e, analyze, and offer suggestions on currant operations.
Est^llshlng professional relationships with cfients, staff, end other stdtehoiders.
Maintaining relationships with clients and flndfrtg creative ways to expand the programs
effectiveness.

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Program Manager/ Director: Weatherlzation & Employment Programs

Berlin, NH
4-1-13to6-31-2020

Rovide leadersh^ and oversight to program's operations, budgets and reporting; -
Coordinate artd integrate programs' activities.
Hire, 8uper>^ and manage staff. Including In-house and Itinerant employees.
Prepare grants and proposals.
Develop, prepare and implement program budgets, narratives.
Review and reconcile program flnandai reports for reimbursement.
Interact with program monitors, outside auditors. Federal agency auditors and others in
review of program activities, compliance and flnandai accountability
Develop new programs and funding streams as appropriate.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Crew Chief/ State Certified Energy Auditor BerBn. NH 5-1-05 to 4-1-15



Northern Express Eatery, Inc. North Conway, NH
President I General Manager 11-1-2002to^15-2005
Estimated food atxl beverage costs, requisitioning and purchasing supplies
Assisted subordinates fn Wenttfying and resolving problems.
Conferred with food preparation and other personnel to plan menus and related
activities.

Directed hiring and assignment of personnel
Investigated and resolved food quality and service complaints.
Maintained all records and produced reports.
Executed dally operations df restaurant management.

HatfteW-Reynolds Electric an 1ES, Inc. Company Phoenix, A2
Project Manager 6.16-2000 to 10-30-2002
Applied knowledge of the constnjction trade In the dally operation of duties.
Reviewed project proposals to determine timeframe.funding limitations, procedures
for Accomplishing project, staffing requirements and allotment of available resources
to various phases of projects.

ISO Enterprises, Inc. Lake Havasu City,AZ
President 1 General Manager S-1-1994 to 5-15-2000
Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC, INC. and changed the name.
Contracted to perform specified construction work across the state of Arizona In
accordance with archltecfs plans, blueprints, codes and other specifications.
Estimated costs of materials, labor and use of equipment required to fulfil! provisions
of contract and prepared bids.
Conferred with clients to negotiate terms of contract.
Assisted subordinates in Identifying and resolving problems.
Demonstrated effective presentation skills.



Education:

NHTI
Assoc^tea Degree in Electronic Technoiogy
Theory

Concord
1965

LRCC

Electricdl Systems Installation & Maintenance,
Required for Journeymen electrical testing and State
Licenses.

Laconia

1968

Addltlonal Training:

8 CUE training course for Grant writing fornon- profrts.To enhance my position on the
board of at Children Unlimited, Inc.
Successfully completed GE'sprestigious "SIX SIGMA" management course in 2001
While Employed wtth
Hatflekj-Reyr^olds Electrican lES.hc.CompanyPhoenix.AZ.
Successfully completed trahing courses and seminars for.iead $af6wor1( practices,
asbestos awareness, OSHA30. CPR.efectrtcalcode updates.
Successfully completed Business management classes in AZ
During the 1995-2001.
Successfully completed training and testing to be a NH State certified Energy Auditor
in 2006.

Community:

Board member Children Unlimited, Inc., Conway NH "Non- Profit"
Board member Berlin Revttalization Commtttee. Berlin NH "Non- Profit"
Past member of the advisory board and co-designer for the Myotonic Dystrophy
PouTKlatlons first website.
Previous owner and webmaster for the Myotonic Dystrophy Information website.

License:

Held an Electrical Journeyman license NH
Held an Electrical Contractor Llcer^ AZ

References: Available upon request.



Nathan tLMite..

Professional Summary and Skius

Operations Manager wltti experience and overdte of Rnandal, Quality Assurance and Operations
components for non-profit organizations and small businesses. Professional, flexible with proven
analytical skills. Demonstrated record of effective problem solving, sound business judgement and
customer servloe.

Business Development Planning & Budgeting
Sage/MIP Fund Accounting, GAAP & ROMA
Assat HanBgement
Extensive daily use of Microsoft Excel
Contract Negotiation, Administration & Compliance

PR ALEXPRBENCE

'Stair and Sutxontractor Management
Ctent & Vendor Relations

Volunteer Relations

Certificate, LEAN Six Sigma Green Belt, U5M 2016
Catlficate, Project Management, USM 2014

DMsioa Operations Manager Since April 2019
Trt-County Community Adion Program, Beifln, New Hampshire

Operational, Administrative and Rscal oversite for Government and Utility funded programs that
provide home effldency, Insulation and heating system upgrades to Income eDglble households In
Carroll, Coos and Grafton Counties, New Hampshire.

• Operational ovasigtit of Utility HEA and HPwES, end Federal DOE and DHHS bw Income Weatherlzation, Heat System
r^ialr and replacement programs.

« Oversee all aspects of Program Operations and Project Martagement Including; program budget devefopment end
authorization of expoxiltures according to contracted budget agreements, client ebglbdlty and program compliance,
hiring training, sup^slng and evaluating department staff.

InsMe Producthtt Manager
TC Hafltord Basement Systems, Wells, ME

Inside Production Manager responsible for managing scheduling and dose out of dry basement
systems Installs.

2018

Liaison with homeowner throughout scheduling, Install and closeout processes. Uaison with sales team and Outside
Production Martager to ensure proposal, Installation and material costs met client ecpectatfons, company starxlards
end warranty requirements for dry basement systems.

2016-2018
Project Manager
PATOO Construction, Sanford, ME

Project Manager responsible for managing re^ential home construction process throughout the
planning, scheduling, material procuranent and construction processes.

• Liason to homeovmer throughout entire construction process from oontract signing to dosing. Weekly telephone
update ar>d change order estimate and management. Maintain master schedule on Builde: Trend project mar^agement
software. Schedule sutxontrectors, Inspect wortc to project spec., Issue reworX and approve Invoices for payment
Job cost oversite, materials ordering and Inventory management.

Director, Housing and Energy Smices
The Opportunity Alliance, South Poitiand, ME

2009-2016



^siness, Rscal, Operattonal and Compliance responsibility for federally funded programs that provide
home energy and emergency assistance, HQS home repair, and home effidency and Insulatlcn
upgrades to Income efigible households In Cumberland and York County, Maine.

• Ctontred, OperatJ^ and Fiscal overelght of Federal DOE and DHHS low Jncome Weatherizaiton, Central Heat
Improvement end EITidency Maine Energy Conservation Programs,

•

*  responstbOttes of dlent Intalce, oertUlcation and benefit dttermlnatron, progriimjnbgrity and conjtena for Federal OHHS UHEAP Gran^ provWIng home heating benefits to afffcndmately 3 500
lowHneome Cumberiand County households amualy.

*  Program and Project Management indudfng; dlent eUglbdIty and program oompUance of NMLS
Cumberland County Community Devek^jment Program

renovation and energy effldency upgrades of very bw to moderate
households In Cumberland and York county. "•uuo-«e mrome

Business Manager 2006-2009
SmartCatatog, Portland, ME

budness activity for national cataloger providing Office of the Registrar course catalog
and other legally binding documents to colleges and unlvesities In the United States and Canada.

Accounting Associate 2004 - 200fi
Southern Maine Agency on ̂lng,Scart)orough, ME

Responsible for ixislness office functions of AP/AR and Payroll for non-profit agency. In this position I
was a^untmg liaison for a variety of programs among others, and was responsible for accurate '
payroll processing for departments that operated 24/7/365.

Retail Caiahg andMvmi^ng Photographer 1998-7004
HowcIJ-Ltd.,Portlan4ME

Managlog studio photographer for New Eogtand's first digital commerdal photography studio
responsible for project management, process workflow, and capacity and demand management.

Education

Bachelorof Arts, Geography
University ofMaine^ Farmlngton, 1983

Aocountfng, Prejert Managcmenl and Human Resources

CoMMtiwrrv

Biddefbrd School Committee, Vice Chairman

Begai^)Ete^ to consecutNe 2 year terms b) 2006 and 2008. Saved during period that school fivstem
undertook a $30 million dollar renwatJon of BIddeford High SchMl.

Central America Volunteer work
Heredla, Costa Rica a San Bernadbo Guatemala

' wlS fiitiSS ^ ̂ antemala In 2008 with a volunteer teem to buiJd a timber frame vocational center and

Re/yences available upon request



Dennis Downs

Professional Summary

Skilled Energy Auditor with experience in the Energy Conservation industry. Familiar with a House as a System.
Experienced in Blower Door Testing.

Skills

• Self-motivated • Goal oriented fast Icamer
e Strong verbal commtinication • Make safety a priority
• Mechanically Inclined • Committed to makiDg the client happy
• Accustomed to woridng in all weather conditions • Have knowledge of hand and power tools
• Eager tcleamnew skills

Work History

Production Supervisor, 04/1994 to Current
Tri County CAP - 30 Exchange St Berlin NH 03570

•  Supervise multiple wcatherization teams doing single femily and multi-femily installations.
• Oversee maintenance and management of warehouse, including keeping inventory and ordering of

materials.

•  Pcrfbim energy audits to determine the most cost effective energy improvements.
• Obtamed documents, clearances, ceitifrcates and approvals from local, state, and federal agencies.
•  Production management of crews to meet deadlines and budget objectives.
• Working directly with client to achieve a more energy efficient home.

Packciyinspector, 09/1993 to 04/1994

JenFoot America Inc - Littleton Industrial Park Littleton NH 03561
• Managed a line oftiiree to four workers.
•  Inspected rubber boots for imperfections.

Laborer, 07/1993 to 09/1993

LA Environmental - Louseville Keotucky
• Helped remove sludge from the pollution control lagoons at Simpson Piq)er Co in Oilman VT.

Apprentice Electrician, 10/1992 to 02/1993
Royal Electric - Woodsville NH

• Work under multiple master dectricians wiring the new Lisbon School.

EDUCATION

Associate of Applied Science; Electrical Construction, 1992
NH Vocational Technical College - Prescott Hill, Laconia, NH 03246

CERTIFICATIONS-

BPl Quality Control Inspector • BPI Energy Auditor
Lead Safe Renovator • CPR/FirstAid

OSHA 30 • Valid Drivers License



JESSeCA YOU

Skills

^Operational Leadership
'Reporting Requirements
'Proactive Mindset

'Persuasive Communication

Style

'Document Management
'Team Oriented

Education

May 2011-White

Mountain Communfty

College, Berlin NH

Associates Degree -

Business

Management/Medical

Concentration

Professional Summary

Multi-talented Program Supervisor driven to optimize processes and Improve
productivity to maximize program successes. Extensive experience In management with
a strong work ethic. Excelling and maintaining financial documentation and reporting to
department heads. Polfte with a professional approach to dally tasks. Ready to take

^  each year of my Tr^County Community Action Program career to the next level as the
office/Program Supervisor for the Weathertzatlon Department

Work Experience

Office/Program Supervlson Trt-Countv CAP. Berlin HH: April 2019-Currcnt

In this position I am responsible for program and office functions of the Weatherization

Department. My responsibilities Indude supervising, providing quality overslte,
Inquiring performance measurement, supply training, and/or coordination of training
for the office staff, in coordination with the Division Director, my role Is to record
revenues and expenses to our fiscal department, Invoice our funders for payment of
services completed by our weatherization department. I provide guidance to our office
staff on dlent Intake with a prfority scheduling focus. (do work collaboratlvely with the
Production Supervisor ensuring the scheduling of energy audits Is sufficient, I procure
job supplies and materials for weatherization jobs, and give guidance to the
coordination of heating system installations for both falling heating systems and
emergency ru)-he8t situations, i am here to provide supervision and leadership to office
staff, presently IrKludIng; the Weatiiertzatlon Administrator and the Procurement,
Inventory and Facilities Specialist.

Office iVIanagcr: Gorham Family Dentistry. Gorham HH: Mav 2011- Mav 2018

Supervised a total of 6 staff members. Managed IT problems and Issues w/lth research and technical support. Controlled
computer Issues by trouble-shooting issues in the network. Maintained computerized schedules for 3 doctors and 2
hygienists. Implemented a plan for each new rtudent dentist from UNE every 3 months. Handled Insurance claims,
entered Insurance payments, adjusted patients ledgers, and administered bills via mail. Answered muW-llne telephone
while checking patients In and out Created treatment plans and discussed payment options with patients. Was
responsible for staff and patient relations. Created marketing ideas for Facebook and newspapers. Trained staff on front
end procedures. Enforced HiPAA guidelines by coordinating annual trainings for HIPAA compliance. Scheduled meetings
for open enrollment and coordinated Aflac representation to assist with secondary options.

Customer Service Manager: Walmart. Gorham NH: October 200Q-Octobef 2008

Supervised staff members from several departments throughout the store. Trained new hires on front end procedures
and effective time management. Scheduled cashiers arvl service desk associate to designated areas while maintaining
the schedule throughout the day Implementing reliefs for breaks, lunches, and end of shifts. Attended Share Holders
meetings In reference to stock owned and new options coming up. Managed stcrewlde associate register Issues and/or
customer relation questions. Collected surplus of cash In register tills to drop off to the accounting office. Designated
associates during each shift to assist with reorganizing the stock on shelves for custonwr accessibility.



Samantha Roy'

Qualiiications

ACCURATB I EFFICIENT | DETAILED
Comptdxcnsive knowfedge of tccmoicng prindpJcs, psTinU, end ttx lews. Eztraordinczy ettendon to dctefl with
keen ebUit^ to ptepere end truilpe finendel ceports. Hzpeitisc in Word, Ezcd, Qnidt^oka eofWere, end tix
ptepentioo software. Fimiliar with oiteriflg date, filing, servidog invoices, billing, and paying employeet. Wifiingncse
to go above end beyond job description. Past learner with proven ebilit]' to edtpt to new technology, ptocedures,
end office cqiipment,

Areas of Expertise
^ Acconno Peyable/Recdvable
^ Reccpdoiust
^ Data Input

✓

✓

✓

Hnanoel R^octiflg
b£ontb-End Qosings
10 Key by Touch

^ Aecounting Software
^ Excel Sprcadsbem
^ Microsoft Word

^ Bank ReconciUiedoo ✓ Tax Return Ibepiration Power Point

Professional E3q3erience
WEATHRRITATinN ADMITaTSTRATnR

TRI-COUNTYCOMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM Bctlin.NH 03570 6O3.752-7001
Eicvoi months apcncnce in derica! end coordination work. Dutiee indudc meincaining hmdng systems
prognuns daa coUection, esstsdng witb weathenzatioQ repotting, cootdineting heat syatem woHc, peperwori;
subcontractor conttxcts, cecdving'and processing dient calls for ell prognou and fiindlng, responding to
calli, refenals, end fixl veodora, nun^fng ureeiherixetion flea, and peifbnniag basic o£^ functions.
SERVICE ADVTSQR

BERJJN CITY FORD Goriura, NH 03570 603-752^644
Four years experience of clerical work and customa sovioe. Daily dutis induded niensgiag group of (ecfaaidans
end dispatching woik as scheduled. Wodt induded: eniwering phones, costoma sehnce, filing, coping invoices,

• typing, dm entry, reconiing end tracking inventory, inputting new in^Tnlory, invoidng, pminoting end edliog
service, RVin^ing tcchnidens, end maintaining accounts pa)'ebk end acotunt* rccctvable.

INSIDE SALES REPRESENTATIVE

PORTLAND GLASS Goifaani.NH 03581 603.752-5507
Two years expcdcncc ofdcticad work as en Inside Sals Representeti\x end upeiedng of the store daily. Dudes
induded: answering phones, customer service, filitjg, copying, invoidng, echeduling, quoting, typing, data cntiy,
monthly inventory, receiving ptoduo, otdeimg prtsduct, receiving end coding bills, expense reports, making bimk
depotui, cbseour ircpoits, cootaoing vendore, entering paytoil, wage tnnigcn, and moodily finandal statoncnts.

Volunteer Experience _
VOLUNTEER TAX PRKPARRR

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER Gtsrham, NH 03581 603466-5190
Vohmtcered fiar the VTTA Program. Amirardy worked on and prepared IndividuiJ and Small Business facial
Income Tax returns. Assisted in the preparation of Vermont state tax returns, as weO as Resident Alien's tax
returns. Highly capable of preparing tax rccums with sodal security income, letifemeni income, tuition statements,
unsnployment income, interest on bank accounts, and dividends from banks. Internal Revenue Service Cotificd
Tax Ftcparer for 2010 dc 2011 tax ictums.

Education

WHITE MOUNTAINS COMMUNITY COU£GE

Assodatct Oqpea: Accounting & Business Administration
Certificate: Eottcpenuership
Berlin, NH 03570

PHITHETA KAPPA

^Tiite Mountains Gimmunity Coli^
President 2011-2012

Member Since 2010


